
HERMISTON CITY COUNCIL
Special Meeting May 23, 2022 

Mayor Drotzmann called the special meeting (combined with the City of Umatilla and Umatilla County 
Commissioners) to order at 6:04pm. Present were Councilors Hardin, Peterson, Barron, Spicerkuhn, Duron, 
Davis, Primmer, and Myers. Staff members in attendance were City Manager Byron Smith, Assistant City 
Manager Mark Morgan, City Attorney Richard Tovey, Chief Edmiston, Planning Director Clint Spencer, Finance 
Director Mark Krawczyk, Parks and Recreation Director Brandon Artz, Court Administrator Jillian Viles, and City 
Recorder Lilly Alarcon-Strong.  Youth Advisory Members Elizabeth Doherty, Julissa Gonzales Mendoza and 
Manuel Salazar were also in attendance. The pledge of allegiance was given.   

Project PATH (Practical Assistance through Transitional Housing) 
Hermiston City Manager Byron Smith and Umatilla City Manager David Stockdale presented information 
(PowerPoint Presentation attached) regarding: why a homeless solution is needed, pilot program, proposed 
shelter locations and infrastructure, Request for Proposals (RFP) for a third party to operate the shelter and 
what facilities and services it should have and offer to the residents, immediate and long-term funding, 
homeless population data, other homeless shelters in the area, etc.  

Umatilla County Commissioner Dan Dorran also gave information regarding HB 4123 (attached). 

Umatilla City Manager Stockdale stated the RFP is expected to go out by early June, RFP contract selected by 
the end of July, with strategic planning and site development directly after, and an operational start date in 
November 2022. 

City Manager Smith stated there will be two contracts: one contract will be the joint memorandum of 
understanding between the City of Hermiston, City of Umatilla, and Umatilla County regarding this project, 
and the other contract will be between the City of Umatilla and the RFP recipient. Although the City of Umatilla 
will official adopt the contract with the RFP recipient, presentations can be made for the City of Hermiston and 
Umatilla County to review and understand the contract before it is executed. There are plans to host an 
additional public meeting, after the RFP has been issued, for the public to ask questions and get answers 
regarding this project. 

After much discussion, City Manager Smith stated there are no requested actions for any public body at this 
meeting. This is an informational meeting in order to receive feedback and suggestions and to let the public 
know community leaders are working on this homelessness issue. 

Public Comment 
Josh Roberts, 1709 NE 6th Place, Hermiston- thanked those at the dais who have asked questions to seek out 
how this project is going to unfold. Mr. Roberts asked that the public body and/or the RFP recipient consider 
the following:  

• Will there be security? Will the security be a provided by a private entity or police?
• Who will make sure that vulnerable people staying at the shelter are not victimized by others?
• Who will establish rules and enforce those rules?
• How long can people stay at the shelter and will evictions be necessary?
• Who will be providing liability insurance and who will be the responsible party for claims?
• How will we deal with people coming into the community for this specific reason, “a homeless haven”?
• How big do you think this shelter will get?

Umatilla City Manager Stockdale stated these questions will be answered by the RFP recipient. 
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There were no other comments from the public and Mayor Drotzmann thanked all those who attended, 
participated, and asked great questions in the conversation. 

Adjournment 
There was no other business and Mayor Drotzmann adjourned the Special City Council meeting at 7:07pm and 
stated the City Council would take a short break and convene the regular City Council meeting at 7:30pm.  

SIGNED: 

Dr. David Drotzmann, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_____ 

Lilly Alarcon-Strong, CMC, City Recorder 
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Joint Regional Homeless 
DiscussionWelcome!!
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

Project PATH

Practical Assistance through 
Transitional Housing
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Why?/History
• Pilot Program
• Proposed Location
• Request For Proposals
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Why?/History
– Since 2014 at least two “homeless

summits”
– Martin v. Boise – September 2018 9th

Circuit Decision (2009 lawsuit)
• Requires jurisdictions to provide a location if

homeless are not allowed to camp
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Why?/History cont.
– 2019-2020 Hermiston discussion related to 

property near the Agape House with no 
resolution

– 2021 Meetings held on the subject by the 
City of Umatilla and Umatilla County
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Why?/History cont.
– 2021 Oregon Legislature puts into law the 

provisions of Martin v. Boise giving a July 
1, 2023 deadline

– Various visits to other sites to help 
determine what a solution in west Umatilla 
County might look like
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Pilot Program
– All of these things led to a bill in the 2021 

short session that asked for pilot projects 
for individualized solutions

– Western Umatilla County was included in 
that bill 

– $1,000,000 grant
• 5 year strategic plan
• Remainder to site/operations
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Proposed Location
• County Owned

– Lind/Bensel
– Leased to Umatilla
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion
• Planning Preview - In order to develop the proposed facility

the City of Umatilla anticipates 3 land use applications.
• Annexation - After Annexation the City’s Building

Department would be responsible for all permits and
inspection on the site.

• Conditional Use - Application for a Community Service Use
which allows for establishment of special uses which, by
reason of their public convenience, necessity, unusual
character, technical need or effect on the neighborhood,
may be appropriate in any district.

• Site Plan Review - The City’s industrial site plan standards
would apply and site plan review is required for all
Community Service Uses.
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion
• Annexation
The City would annex the remainder of Lind Road and the subject property. The 
property is currently zoned Light Industrial, Umatilla County’s 1972 Zoning Ordinance, 
and the City anticipates applying our Light Industrial zone to the property upon 
annexation. 
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion
• Conditional Use/Site Plan Review
The City anticipates applying our community service use which allow for 
community use to be established in any zoning district but required additional 
justification from the applicant.
• Application. All community services uses shall be reviewed as conditional

uses according to the procedures and criteria of Chapters 12 and 14 of this
title. Plans shall be submitted for the site that identify the location of the
use, building, parking area, landscaping, screening, and any other features
on the site. The applicant shall submit a narrative that explains why the
use is necessary for the community and why the particular site best serves
the community. The narrative shall also consider impacts upon
surrounding uses and possible mitigating measures, including, but not
limited to, the location of parking, effects of off-site parking, traffic
generation, street access points, buffering and screening, noise,
illumination controls, structure height, hours of operation, crime
prevention, design elements such as scale, structural design, form and
materials, signage, and any other impacts unique to the specific use.
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• Request for Proposals (RFP)
– All of the entities agreed that we should 

solicit for a 3rd party to operate the facility
– We have met multiple times to discuss 

needs and plans
– Following are the results of those 

discussions
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP cont.
– Entity to manage PATH facility that 

contains
• General building with offices, common areas, 

showers and meal facilities
• At least 12 sleeping huts
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP cont.
– Entity to provide services (direct or

partnership) to assist people in moving to
permanent housing
• 24/7 onsite staffing
• Assist with basic medical, dental and vision

services
• Assistance with transportation to work,

education, etc.
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP cont.
– Entity to provide services to assist people 

in moving to permanent housing cont.
• Assistance with behavioral health or 

substance abuse services
• Care coordination/case management to 

support all efforts to assist those in Project 
PATH

• Assistance with educational services
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP Process
– Issued by City of Umatilla for the coalition
– Responses reviewed by a selection 

committee 
• Umatilla County
• City of Umatilla
• City of Hermiston
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP Process cont.
– Issued by City of Umatilla for the coalition
– Responses reviewed by a selection

committee
• Umatilla County
• City of Umatilla
• City of Hermiston
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Joint Regional Homeless Discussion

• RFP Process cont.
– Contract approved by Umatilla City Council
– Anticipated start date mid-summer 2022

• Strategic planning
• Site development
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Joint Regional Homeless 
DiscussionDiscussion
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